
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel

Monday, 14 October 2019 at 10.30 am 

VENUE: Control Room, Cumbria Fire and Rescue HQ, 
Carleton Avenue, Penrith, CA10 2FA. 

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THERE WILL BE A BRIEFING FOR THE PANEL AT 
9.30 AM

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.
 

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of any item on the 
Agenda.
 

4  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive any items of public participation.

(Questions and petitions must be received in writing by 
Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer at least seven 
working days before the date of the Panel meeting). 



5  MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 12 July 2019 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 5 - 14)

6  JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

To receive the Joint Audit Committee Annual Report 2018/19 
(copy enclosed).
(Pages 15 - 22)

7  REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - QUARTER 1

a  Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 
To consider a report from Cumbria Constabulary (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 23 - 26)

b  Commissioner's Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 
To receive a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (copy enclosed).
(Pages 27 - 28)

8  SUPPORT FOR VICTIMS

To consider a report by the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (copy enclosed).
(Pages 29 - 36)

9  UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS

To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 
Council) (copy enclosed).
(Pages 37 - 38)

10  PANEL UPDATE REPORT

To consider the Panel Briefing from the Senior Manager – Policy 
and Scrutiny (Cumbria County Council) (copy enclosed).
(Pages 39 - 44)



11  DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Panel will be held on Tuesday 
28 January 2020 at 10.30 am in the Gunson Meeting Room, 
Ingwell Hall, Westlakes Science Park, Moor Row, Cumbria, CA24 
3JZ.
 

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - if you wish to 
inspect Minutes or Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have 
any other general queries about the meeting, please contact:

Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Cumbria House, 
117 Botchergate, Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1RD

Telephone Nos: 01228 226364 / 07825340229



This page is intentionally left blank



 
CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel held on 
Friday, 12 July 2019 at 10.30 am at Council Chamber, Allerdale House, 
Workington, Cumbria. CA14 3YJ

PRESENT:

Mr W McEwan (Cumbria County Council) (Chair)

Mrs J Cooke, Independent Co-opted Member
Miss HJ Fearon, Cumbria County Council (Vice-Chair)
Mr KR Hamilton, Barrow Borough Council
Ms D Holden, Eden District Council
Mr MA Johnson, Cumbria County Council
Mr A Kirkbride, Allerdale Borough Council
Mr P McSweeney, South Lakeland District Council
Miss L Vance, Independent Co-opted Member

Also in Attendance:-

Ms M Bellis - Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner

Mr H Cox - Policy and Scrutiny Officer
Mr T Gale - Senior Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer
Mrs L Harker - Senior Democratic Services Officer
Mr P McCall - Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
Mrs G Shearer - Head of Communications and Business Services 

- Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Mr B Spencer - Group Solicitor/Deputy Monitoring Officer
Ms V Stafford - Chief Executive, Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN 
THE PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND 

PRESS

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

RESOLVED, that Mr W McEwan be appointed Chair of the Panel for the 
ensuing year.

Mr McEwan thereupon took the Chair.

5

Agenda Item 5



2 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

RESOLVED, that Miss H Fearon be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Panel 
for the ensuing year.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr RK Bingham, Ms G Dinsdale 
and Mr K Meller.

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

5 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the 
meeting for any items of business on this occasion.

6 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no items of public participation to be considered at this 
meeting.

7 MINUTES

(1) With reference to minute 51 – Presentation by the Independent 
Office for Police Conduct – the 7th paragraph, penultimate sentence 
should read ….. pro-active steps ‘the Panel’ had taken .….

(2) With reference to minute 52(a) – Revenue Budget Monitoring – 
Quarter 3 – the 4th paragraph, 2nd sentence should read ….. be 
deployed in ‘urban areas’ but would …..

RESOLVED, that with the inclusion of the above amendments the 
minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2019 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

6



8 CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL CHAIRMAN'S ANNUAL 
REPORT 2019-20

The Panel received the first Annual Report from the Chairman which 
provided information on the Panel’s role and responsibilities, including 
statutory duties.  It also acted as a point of reference for partners, 
external organisations and the public for the work that was carried out by 
the Panel.  

Members welcomed the report and suggested that the Foreword should 
highlight the Panel’s achievements.  

With reference to the information regarding ‘Challenges Facing Policing’ 
and the 42% funding which derived from the Cumbria Police policing 
precept; officers were asked to clarify the figure as this was different to 
the information contained in the OPCC’s report.

The Police and Crime Commissioner supported the document and felt it 
was a balanced, helpful and positive report.

The Chair conveyed his thanks to the officers for the work they had 
undertaken to produce the report.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

9 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER'S ANNUAL REPORT 
2018-19

The Panel considered a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (OPCC) which presented the text for the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s third Annual Report, covering the period from 
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. 

Members noted that the Annual Report was consistent with last year’s 
format and had been written with accessibility in mind, to enable a 
member of the public to easily understand how the Commissioner had 
carried out his functions and what his key achievements had been to 
date.

A discussion took place regarding the Out of Court Scrutiny Panel which 
had provided visibility of how the Constabulary was administering out of 
court disposals.  Members asked for a presentation on this at a future 
meeting. 

7



The Panel drew attention to the role of a Modern Slavery, Human 
Trafficking Co-ordinator whose remit would ensure that all multi-agency 
partners worked together to support victims and to investigate 
perpetrators of those crimes.  It was agreed that the OPCC would provide 
members with further information on the role.

Members welcomed Cumbria’s Mini Police scheme which had been 
launched in 2018.  It was noted that participant schools and mini police 
officers had taken part in a number of events including road safety 
patrols, local litter picks, educational talks on county lines drug dealing 
and supporting local events.  The Panel was informed that Cumbria 
currently had 26 member schools.  The Barrow Borough Council 
representative asked for details on the schools in the Barrow area as the 
County Council’s Local Committee for Barrow was undertaking a school 
safety initiative and would like to involve them.

The Panel noted that the OPCC had received 51 Freedom of Information 
(FOI) Requests.  Members were informed they were received from a 
broad range of people with a significant number from the media.  It was 
explained that, for transparency, all FOI requests were published on the 
OPCC website.

The Chair, on behalf of the Panel, thanked the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and his Team for an informative Annual Report.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

10 SERIOUS VIOLENCE AND COUNTY LINES

The Panel considered a report by the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner which summarised how he continued to work with, and 
support, the Constabulary, partners and local communities to target 
resources to reduce the impact of serious violence and county lines 
across Cumbria.

Members were informed that the Commissioner recognised serious and 
organised crime as a priority.  The Panel noted that it was often 
perceived that rural communities were immune from serious crime but 
the targeting and exploitation of rural communities by organised 
criminality was now well documented.  Concerns were raised regarding 
the high demand for all common drug types in the UK which was linked 
to the county line drug supply networks and had been identified as a 
driver for an increase in serious violence.  

8



The Commissioner emphasised the work he was undertaking with the 
Constabulary to ensure focus and levels of resource to tackle county lines 
drug supply activity in Barrow and other parts of the county.  He 
informed the Panel that he had held the Constabulary to account through 
a Public Accountability Conference focusing on serious organised crime 
and drug supply.  The Commissioner was assured the Constabulary fully 
understood the scale and complexity of this threat across Cumbria and 
had the capability and capacity to proactively target, pursue and 
dismantle serious and organised criminals and networks, as well as bring 
offenders to justice.  It was emphasised to the Panel that the 
Constabulary did not work in isolation and engaged with partner agencies 
at a local, regional and national level.

The Panel noted that the Commissioner also held the Chief Constable to 
account at their weekly meetings where discussions took place regarding 
current and emerging operational business as well as to review areas of 
improvement.  A discussion took place regarding the areas of 
improvement and it was agreed that a link would be circulated to the 
Accountability Framework which contained this information.

Members raised their concerns regarding the lack of neighbourhood 
policing.  The Commissioner acknowledged the concerns of members but 
emphasised that extra funding would be required to enhance local 
neighbourhood policing.  

The Panel felt there could be more community involvement ie parish 
councils and schools and asked how the Force proposed to engage with 
them.  The Commissioner informed members that a future approach 
would be through the local focus hubs which would formalise the process 
of sharing information and intelligence between partners, ensuring 
interventions were targeted and cohesive.

Members were informed that when the Government had consulted on the 
Serious Violence Strategy, it had indicated that this issue could not be 
resolved by one agency alone and that a wider collaborative approach 
would be required.  It was explained that the Strategy confirmed a ‘public 
health approach’ as the best means to deliver this.  It was noted that 
taking this into consideration, the OPCC had instigated a review of the 
county’s partnership arrangements through Safer Cumbria to ensure the 
correct structure was in place and aligned with the Government’s 
proposals.

The Panel’s attention was drawn to the positive work undertaken by the 
Barrow Community Team regarding the Egerton Court project.  Members 
were informed of a recent presentation which the Team had delivered 
regarding this matter and suggested this be considered at a future 
meeting of the Panel.  

9



During the course of discussion concerns were also raised regarding the 
possible effects the new Lake District Airport could have on drug supply 
in the county.

A recent presentation which had been considered by the Scrutiny 
Advisory Board – Children and Young People regarding County Lines was 
referred to and it was agreed this would be circulated to the Panel.  It 
was suggested that Panel members be extended an invitation to any 
future presentations which it was felt would be beneficial to them.

Members raised their concerns regarding Cumbria being unsuccessful in 
the allocation of Government funding for a Violence Reduction Unit.  The 
Commissioner assured the Panel that he had raised his concerns directly 
with the Policing Minister.  Members welcomed the discussions which 
were taking place with regional partners who had received funding to see 
what lessons could be learnt from their approach in tackling serious 
violence and to identify if there was anything they had undertaken which 
would benefit Cumbria.  

A discussion took place regarding a proposed CCTV Project in rural areas 
of the county, highlighting in particular the Milnthorpe area where, on the 
whole, the parish councils on the southern border were keen to engage.  
A discussion took place regarding funding for the Project and the Police 
and Crime Commissioner confirmed there was a commitment to part fund 
(50% contribution) up to 25 slots in the Control Room.

The Commissioner was informed that it was anticipated South Lakeland 
District Council would contribute to the Project if the OPCC made a 
commitment for the installation of CCTV in the South Lakeland area.

The Commissioner emphasised his commitment to the Project and 
informed members that the delay in the project was due to the need to 
ensure that the Control Room system had the capacity to support this in 
the future.  

The Panel received an update regarding the North West Joint Oversight 
Committee which provided leadership and scrutiny around the 
governance of the North West Regional Organised Crime Unit (NWROCU).  
Members were informed that the NWROCU supported the Constabulary in 
identifying, disrupting and dismantling organised crime groups causing 
the most harm and was also interdependent with the National Crime 
Agency (NCA).  It was emphasised that the biggest challenge was 
funding highlighting that the funding module for ROCU’s would end next 
year.  

10



The Board was informed that rural areas were not usually deemed to be 
hotspots, therefore, received less funding.  It was explained that the 
Public Accountability Committee would be investigating the funding 
formula and greater co-ordination across the policing system.  Members 
offered their support to ensure Cumbria received their fair share of 
funding.  

The Panel discussed modern day slavery emphasising that this should not 
be under-estimated in Cumbria.  Members welcomed the role of a Modern 
Slavery, Human Trafficking and Sex Worker Co-ordinator which was 
funded by the OPCC.  It was felt the Co-ordinator could assist in raising 
awareness to the public.  Members were informed that a challenge for 
the Co-ordinator was the engagement of partners and any assistance 
from the Panel was welcomed.  It was agreed details of the Co-ordinator 
would be circulated to members.

The Panel asked for feedback on the unsuccessful bids which had been 
submitted by the OPCC to the Government’s ‘Early Years Intervention 
Fund’ and ‘Children Affected by Domestic Abuse Fund’.  Members were 
informed that the OPCC had only received generic feedback with no 
specific details for Cumbria.  

The Board thanked the OPCC for an informative report.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

11 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2018/19 QUARTER 4 TO 
MARCH 2019 AND PROVISIONAL OUTTURN

a Constabulary Budget Report

The Panel received a report from Cumbria Constabulary which provided 
details of the provisional outturn on the Constabulary’s Revenue budget 
for 2018/19.  Members noted that the figures quoted at this stage were 
reported as provisional as the final accounts were still subject to audit 
but it was not envisaged that there would be any significant changes.

Members were informed that the figures showed net revenue expenditure 
on Constabulary controlled and managed budgets amounting to 
£115.397m which represented an overspend of £217k (0.19%) against 
the approved adjusted budget of £115.180m.

The Panel noted the overspend was made up of an overspend on 
expenditure budgets of £836k (0.69%) offset by additional income 
totalling £619k (10.21%).  It was explained the final overspend of £217k 
represented a reduction of £429k compared to the overspend reported at 
the end of Quarter 3 at 31 December of £646k. 

11



It was highlighted to members that the overspend had already been 
reduced through the agreed application of revenue budget reserves 
amounting to £470k.  The net overspend prior to application of reserves 
was therefore £687k which represented 0.6% of the adjusted budget.

The Panel noted the significant pressures the police pay budget had 
experienced during the year due to the requirement to fund a higher than 
budgeted number of police ill health retirements under Police Pension 
Regulations.  Members queried whether the Force had experienced 
problems with staff sickness.  It was confirmed that the budget pressures 
were due to very individual circumstances experienced by the Force in 
the past year.

Members drew attention to the underspend on the Police Community 
Support Officers (PCSOs) pay.  The Panel was informed this was due to 
the number of PCSOs leaving their position to become a regular police 
officer.  The Police and Crime Commissioner supported the PCSOs taking 
this route to become police officers; whilst he encouraged recruitment via 
the Police Education Qualification Framework highlighted the challenges 
the Force were facing.  The PCC drew attention to the positive 
recruitment which had taken place via the military and felt the PEQF 
could preclude them in the future.

Members drew attention to Lincolnshire Police Force who were taking 
legal action over the controversial policy for all new police officers to 
have a degree qualification.  The Panel offered their support of the PCC 
being supportive of Lincolnshire Police Force.

RESOLVED, that the Constabulary Revenue budget provisional outturn 
for 2018/19 be noted.

b Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Budget Report

The Panel considered a report by the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner which provided details of the provisional outturn on the 
Commissioner’s Revenue budget for 2018/19.  It was explained that the 
figures quoted at this stage were reported as provisional as the final 
accounts were still subject to audit but it was not envisaged that there 
would be any significant changes.

12



Members were informed that the total net expenditure amounted to 
£98.823m compared to an approved budget of £98.627m.  It was 
explained this was a net variance of £196k (0.20%) and represented an 
overspend of £217k in relation to funding provided to the Constabulary 
and an underspend of £21k on budgets managed by the OPCC.  The 
Panel noted the forecast variation of £196k represented a reduction in 
the forecast overspend of £427k compared to the £623k reported as at 
31 December 2018. 

RESOLVED, the quarter 4 provisional outturn position for the revenue 
budget for 2018/19 be noted.

12 UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS

The Panel considered a report by the Monitoring Officer which advised 
members of any complaints received in accordance with the Panel’s 
Complaints Procedure.  The report outlined where appropriate, what, if 
any, action had been taken in respect of the complaints.

Members were informed that as at the date of the report there were no 
ongoing complaints.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

13 PANEL UPDATE REPORT

Members received a report which gave an update on key issues and 
developments that had occurred since the last meeting of the Panel 
which included progress on actions agreed at the March Panel meeting, 
National Policy Developments and the Panel’s Work Programme.

The Panel discussed the report and drew attention to the omission of 
member training.  Members also highlighted that recruitment of 
Independent Members to the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel would be 
required next year.  Whilst the Panel acknowledged recruitment was 
required raised their concerns regarding the lack of continuity due to the 
process.

Members were informed that on 2 May Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for 
Constabulary, Fire and Rescue Services’ (HMICFRS) had released their 
first group of Police, Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy (PEEL) 
inspections for 2018/19, including Cumbria Constabulary. 

13



The Panel noted that HMICFRS reported that Cumbria Constabulary was 
again ‘good’ in all inspected categories for effectiveness, efficiency and 
legitimacy, highlighting it as being particularly good in a number of 
areas.  It was highlighted that crime recording had been rated as 
‘outstanding’.  Members also noted there were areas which required 
further improvement.

The Commissioner welcomed the findings of the inspection and 
highlighted that his aspiration was to gradually become outstanding 
across the whole Force. 

The Panel were informed that the Local Government Association, 
alongside the Centre for Public Scrutiny and Frontline Consulting had 
released the updated Police and Crime Panel non-statutory guidance 
which would be circulated to members.

A discussion took place regarding forthcoming meetings and dates and 
the Chair of the Panel expressed an interest in attending the Police and 
Crime Panel Conference on Tuesday 19 November in Coventry.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

14 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday 
14 October 2019 at 10.30 am at Cumbria Fire and Rescue HQ, Carleton 
Avenue, Penrith.

The meeting ended at 12.25 pm

14



    

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Joint Audit Committee 
Annual Report 2018/19 

 

Foreword of the Committee Chair 
 
Welcome to the 2018/19 Annual Report of the 

Joint Audit Committee (JAC).  The committee is 

an independent body that provides assurance to 

the Commissioner and Chief Constable on their 

arrangements for governance.  The committee 

achieves this by undertaking a wide range of 

reviews against an annual work programme.  

Through providing support and challenge the 

committee aims to improve and add value to 

those areas of governance within its remit. 

 

During the course of the 2018/19 financial year, 

committee members have considered over 91 

reports covering matters of governance including 

18 internal audit reviews and the Commissioner 

and Chief Constable’s Statement of Accounts.  

Our work included undertaking a substantive 

review of key elements of the governance 

framework, challenging and monitoring the 

approach to risk management, making key 

recommendations regarding its improvement 

and scrutinising the effectiveness of 

arrangements to secure value for money.  In 

addition the committee has continued to 

consider the assurance arrangements following 

the introduction of the Joint Chief Finance 

Officer, making a number of recommendations to 

ensure a robust approach to assessing the 

ongoing effectiveness of the arrangement. 

 

Each year a review of effectiveness is completed 

covering the work of the committee.  This 

review, which is classed as a self-assessment is 

completed on behalf of the committee by the 

Deputy Chief Finance Officer.  The review of the 

committee’s work for 2018/19 has concluded 

that the committee meets the CIPFA criteria for 

being highly effective.  

 

  

15

A
genda Item

 6



 

For 2019/20 the committee has prepared an 

action plan to help ensure that the work of the 

committee is proactive in focusing on new and 

emerging issues of governance.  We will look to: 

 Support and monitor the OPCC and 

Constabulary plans to address the 

increasingly stringent funding environment.  

 Support and challenge any new governance 

arrangements, for example, from 

restructuring and capacity reviews, greater 

collaboration with other organisations or 

joint working on delivery of services. 

 Improve the Committee’s awareness of the 

work of the Police and Crime Panel and the 

Ethics and Integrity Panel where appropriate.  

 Improve the Committee’s strategic 

awareness of the Police and Crime Plan. 

In presenting this annual report, the committee 

wishes to thank the Commissioner and Chief 

Constable’s officers and appointed auditors for 

their support.  I hope you will find this report 

informative, and that the information it provides 

supports a wider understanding of the 

contribution made by the committee to the 

Commissioner and Chief Constable’s 

arrangements for governance. 

 

Fiona Daley  

Joint Audit Committee Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

The PCC for Cumbria, Peter McCall said 

“The Joint Audit Committee provide 

essential and independent professional 

assurance that both the Constabulary and 

the OPCC are delivering their functions with 

due regard to governance and financial 

robustness.  The Committee have raised 

appropriate concerns when they have not 

been assured, I welcome this, no system is 

perfect and this is why we have such 

scrutiny, where concerns have been 

raised this has resulted in immediate action 

being taken to address them.  The service 

supports both the OPCC and Chief Constable 

and is complementary to the work of 

internal audit, the public accountability 

process and the work of Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & 

Rescue Services (HMICFRS).  I am pleased 

that the committee have a wide range of 

skills covering a broad knowledge base 

which allows for detailed scrutiny to take 

place and further give me the assurance 

that I require on behalf of the public of 

Cumbria.” 

 

The Chief Constable, Michelle Skeer 

said “I value the work of the Joint 

Audit Committee in providing 

assurance that governance within the 

Constabulary is effective and supports 

the delivery of an outstanding policing 

service for the people of 

Cumbria.  The independence, 

complementary skills and 

conscientious approach of the 

committee to their role facilitates 

robust scrutiny and challenge which 

contributes to the Constabulary 

achieving its objectives, and being an 

efficient and effective policing 

service.” 

 

 

16



 

 

Joint Audit Committee 
Summary Review of Effectiveness 2018/19 

 

 

Background 

The purpose of an audit committee is to provide 

those charged with governance independent 

assurance on the adequacy of the risk 

management framework, the internal control 

environment and the integrity of the financial 

reporting and annual governance process. 

 

The Joint audit Committee (JAC) is made up of 

four independent appointed members and they 

provide this assurance role for both the Police 

and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria (PCC) and 

the Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary. 

 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) provides guidance on the 

role of the committee and also recommends 

that an annual review of effectiveness against 

these guidance principles is undertaken.  This 

document summarises the findings of the 

review for the 2018/19 financial year, the 

review document in full can be found on the 

PCC website at:  

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2019/06/Joint-Audit-Committee-

Review-of-Effectiveness-2018-19.pdf 

 

Annual Review 2018/19 

The review of the committee and its functions 

using the updated 2018 CIPFA guidance 

concluded that the committee meets the 

standard described by CIPFA as “highly effective 

in its operation”.  The review provides a 1-5 

score (with 5 being highest) against a number of 

criteria.  The committee has scored 5 in all 

categories.  In previous years in one category 

a score of 4 was achieved (promoting reporting 

and accountability), measures put in place for 

2017/18 and continued in 2018/19 whereby the 

committee received and commented on the 

draft statement of accounts before they were 

audited has seen that score increase to 5. 

 

The JAC annual work profile is mapped against 

the CIPFA guidance to ensure all requirements 

are covered.  The annual work programme 

arranged by meeting and by assurance format 

is provided in the full report, together with the 

role profile of committee chair and members, 

attendance at meetings and the terms of 

reference. 

The remainder of this report provides a 

summary of the individual categories included 

in the assessment. 

17

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Joint-Audit-Committee-Review-of-Effectiveness-2018-19.pdf
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Joint-Audit-Committee-Review-of-Effectiveness-2018-19.pdf
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Joint-Audit-Committee-Review-of-Effectiveness-2018-19.pdf


 

Core Committee Functions 

Good Governance and the Annual 
Governance Statement 

The JAC address governance principles in the 

course of regular business rather than as a once 

a year exercise.  CIPFA notes the importance 

of the committee to make things better not just 

review what has happened in the past.  The 

annual work programme (provided in detail in 

the full report) includes arrangements for 

cyclical review of governance documents and 

all material governance arrangements. 

During the year members have again 

contributed to the assurance arrangements 

since the introduction of the Joint Chief Finance 

Officer by receiving regular updates on the 

ongoing arrangement.  In addition, members 

have made a number of contributions to the 

narrative within corporate governance 

documents that improves their overall 

accessibility to users and strengthens or 

clarifies internal controls.  This has included 

feedback to improve wording within the joint 

procurement regulations and financial 

regulations. 

 

Internal Audit 

JAC has a clear role in relation to oversight of 

the internal audit function.  JAC review the 

audit charter and audit plan on an annual basis.  

JAC also receive all audit reports at the point at 

which they are finalised, members will then 

select those reports that they wish to be 

discussed in more detail at the following 

meeting.  During the year members have 

given specific focus to audit reports covering a 

diverse range of subjects including; duty 

management, ICT capacity, vulnerability/hate 

crime, cash receipting, creditors, ICT security, 

safeguarding hub, digital media investigation 

unit, GDPR, pensions, command and 

control/101 and follow up audits on 

procurement and the use of stingers.  

Increased levels of scrutiny result in 

improvements to the control environment and 

provide assurances on the effective 

implementation of audit recommendations. 

The committee meet annually and 

independently with the Head of Internal audit 

(HIA) and also receive the HIA annual report and 

opinion.  JAC also monitor the performance of 

internal audit against agreed indicators on a 

regular basis.  An update on progress against 

all medium and high level audit 

recommendations is provided to 4 of the 5 

meetings in the year. 

 

Risk Management 

The Home Office Financial Management Code 

of Practice directs committees to advise the 

Commissioner and Chief Constable on the 

adoption of appropriate risk management 

arrangements.  JAC consider the risk 

management strategies and risk registers of the 

PCC and Constabulary on a regular basis.  JAC 

has a lead member for risk who provides input 

and advice on risk management strategies prior 

to consideration by the full committee.  In 

accordance with best practice, the committee 

also maintains a separate risk register to 

manage risks associated with the committees 

own activities.  

  

18



 

Assurance Frameworks and Assurance 

Planning 

The committee works within an assurance 

based programme of work which aligns to the 

terms of reference.  The work programme 

ensures that assurance activity is planned and 

delivered efficiently and effectively.  The 

assurance framework includes receiving 

assurances from chief officers, management, 

internal and external auditors. 

 

Value for Money (VFM) and Best Value 

CIPFA guidance notes that it is the statutory 

responsibility of the Chief Constable to secure 

VFM, the Commissioner holds the Chief 

Constable to account for this responsibility.  

The role of JAC is to support both the 

Commissioner and Chief Constable to fulfil their 

responsibilities.  The JAC role focuses on the 

arrangements to ensure VFM and the progress 

in achieving VFM.  The work includes how 

VFM performance is evaluated as part of the 

annual governance statements and 

consideration of the external audit opinion with 

regards to VFM.  The committee also receive a 

number of VFM reports including an analysis of 

the HMICFRS VFM profiles.  In addition, the 

format of internal audit reports specifically 

identify any VFM implications of audits. 

 

Countering Fraud and Corruption 

CIPFA guidance states that the committee is to 

have oversight of the counter-fraud strategy, 

assessing whether it meets recommended 

practice, governance standards and complies 

with legislation.  JAC has a good 

understanding of the level of fraud risk to which 

the organisation is exposed and implications for 

the wider control environment.  The JAC 

undertakes a cyclical review of the counter 

fraud strategy including associated codes of 

conduct on ethical behaviour.  On an annual 

basis the committee receives a report from the 

OPCC on the effectiveness and monitoring of 

arrangements for anti-fraud and corruption 

within the OPCC.  In addition as part of the 

process for reviewing the annual statement of 

accounts the committee receives the 

Commissioner’s and Chief Constable’s letter of 

management assurance to the external auditor 

which include a full fraud risk assessment.  

Members further support their understanding 

by their review of all audit reports which 

provide an understanding of internal controls 

that are in place and how these are working. 

 

External Audit and Inspection 

The JAC role includes receiving and considering 

the work of the external auditor.  Cyclical 

reports included in the annual work programme 

cover the annual report and a mid-year update 

report.  In addition the JAC have a private 

meeting with the external auditor once a year.  

External audit are represented at each of the 

JAC meetings and fully engage with any 

discussions where appropriate.  Where 

external audit reports include 

recommendations an update on these is 

monitored at 4 of the 5 meetings during the 

year. 

19



 

Financial Reporting 

The CIPFA guidance recommends that it is good 

practice for the accounts and AGS to be 

reviewed by the committee prior to the 

commencement of the annual external audit.  

The work on the statement of accounts includes 

reviewing consistency between the Joint Chief 

Finance Officer’s narrative forward, the 

financial statements and the committee’s own 

understanding of the financial challenges and 

risks facing the organisation.  Consideration is 

also given to the accessibility and overall 

readability of the statements.  The financial 

statements are accompanied on the agenda by 

a report from the Joint Chief Finance Officer 

that consolidates key areas of assurance on the 

financial statements and explains any key 

changes.  The committee received the annual 

statement of accounts and AGS at the May 

meeting, in advance of the accounts being 

authorised for issue by the Joint Chief Finance 

Officer and in advance of the audit thereby 

complying with best practice guidance. 

 

Partnership Governance and Collaboration 

The JAC role includes considering the assurance 

available on whether partnerships or 

collaboration arrangements are satisfactorily 

established an operating effectively.  The 

committee should satisfy itself that the 

principles of good governance underpin such 

arrangements. 

During 2018/19 the committee have worked 

with senior officers to ensure that the 

governance arrangements for the safeguarding 

hub were robust, in place and operating 

effectively.  This work culminated with the 

committee having an informative visit to the 

hub in April 2019. 

 

Governance and Ethical Values 

With its core role of supporting good 

governance, support for the ethical framework 

of the organisation is also important for the 

committee.  Public sector organisations have 

an overarching mission to serve the public 

interest in adhering to the requirements of 

legislation and government policies.  This 

makes it essential that the entire organisation 

can demonstrate the integrity of all its actions 

and has mechanisms in place that encourage 

and enforce a strong commitment to ethical 

values and legal compliance at all levels.  The 

audit committee should be satisfied that there 

are adequate arrangements to achieve this. 

 

Wider Committee Functions 

Ethical Values and Treasury Management 

In relation to ethical values, guidance 

acknowledges the role of the committee in 

promoting high standards and that the 

committee may take on the role of a standards 

committee.  Evidence in support of this 

requirement is provided within core functions 

assessment under good governance and 

countering fraud and corruption. The 

committee also consider the annual report of 

the Ethics and Integrity Panel and consider the 

implications of their finding for the overall 

systems of governance within the Constabulary. 

20



 

With regards to treasury management, the 

committee ensures effective scrutiny of the 

treasury management strategy and policies.  

Scrutiny involves developing an understanding 

of treasury matters and receiving quarterly 

activity reports to support this.  The JAC 

receive a treasury management briefing directly 

from the Commissioner’s treasury advisors on 

an annual basis in addition to the quarterly 

activity reports and annual strategy statement.   

 

Independence and accountability      

The CIPFA guidance includes a position 

statement that covers key features that should 

be evidenced within audit committees.  

Outside this statement, arrangements should 

reflect local circumstances.  The committee is 

fully compliant with the requirements of the 

CIPFA guidance. 

 

Membership and Effectiveness 

CIPFA recognises that membership composition 

and operation are a key factor in achieving the 

characteristics of a good audit committee.  

The JAC has four members appointed through a 

recruitment process.  

  

The members come from a range of 

backgrounds with a wide skillset.  A number of 

development activities are included within the 

workplan which includes a corporate update at 

every meeting and members are supported in 

attending national events relevant to their role.  

 

During 2018/19 there have been no changes to 

the membership of the committee.  The most 

recent appointee to the committee started in 

September 2016 and the appointment further 

strengthened the committee. 

Plans for 2019/20  

As part of the review a number of areas of 

development have been identified for 2019/20 

which include plans to: 

 Support and monitor the OPCC and 

Constabulary plans to work effectively 

within the current funding environment.  

 Support and challenge any new governance 

arrangements, for example, from 

restructuring and capacity reviews, greater 

collaboration with other organisations or 

joint working on delivery of services. 

 Improve awareness of the work of the 

Police and Crime Panel and the Ethics and 

Integrity Panel where appropriate.  

 Strategic awareness of the Police and Crime 

Plan. 

 

 

 

  

21



 

A brief introduction to the current committee members is provided below: 

 

Fiona Daley – Fiona joined the committee in November 2012 and took over 

as chair of the committee in April 2015. 

Fiona comes to the OPCC with a strong public sector audit 

background.  Having worked for the Audit Commission for 

more than 20 years in a variety of roles, including being 

appointed District Auditor, Fiona then went on to senior financial 

management and leadership roles.  As well as being a member of the Joint 

Audit and Standards Committee Fiona has a portfolio of other appointments 

including working for the Local Government Association on setting up a 

successor body to the Audit Commission; sitting as an independent 

appointments panel member for the Judicial Appointment Commission; an 

accountant member of the Financial Reporting Council's disciplinary panel 

and; chair of a local charity. 

Jack Jones – Jack joined the committee in November 2012. 

Jack has spent his whole career working within the finance 

sector, including South Lakeland District Council where he 

was Treasurer/Director of Finance.   As a result, Jack has 

brought with him experience of working in local government as well as a 

sound understanding of financial management and relevant technical 

knowledge. Jack is currently working part time as responsible finance officer 

for a Cumbrian Town Council. 

Fiona Moore – Fiona joined the committee in April 2015. 

Fiona, a solicitor by profession, has considerable experience 

working in Criminal Justice based organisations most 

recently in a Head of Governance role in the Ministry of 

Justice.  Fiona is Chair of Castles and Coasts Housing Association and Chair 

of Governors of Windermere C of E Primary School.  Fiona has served on a 

number of Committees in a range of roles and as a member of the Two 

Castles Audit Committee.  

 

Malcolm Iredale – Malcolm joined the committee in 

September 2016. 

Malcolm trained and worked in an English Local Authority 

before moving to Scotland to work as a Local Government 

Auditor - both external and internal, including Police 

Authorities. He then spent over 20 years in the Highlands as a Director of 

Finance in both Local Government and the NHS, with a particular interest in 

the delivery of public services in remote and rural areas. He has 

subsequently undertaken procurement roles at both local and national 

level, and now serves as a Trustee of a local charity. 

22



                              
Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20
Forecast for Quarter 1 as at 30 June 2019 to The Police and Crime Panel 14 October 2019
 

 

Constabulary Summary at June 2019 

The current forecast of net expenditure amounts to £121.243m compared to a revised budget of £121.258m.  The 

variance amounts to a forecast underspend of £15k (0.01%) and is made up of a forecast overspend on expenditure 

budgets of £97k (0.08%) an increase in income of £112k (1.69%).  The budget has been adjusted to reflect an agreed 

reduction in the planned drawdown from the budget support reserve in 2019/20.   

 

Current Forecast 

The forecast constabulary underspend is due to a number of factors across several different headings. 

The police officer budget is forecast to overspend by £24k.  An underspend of £99k is forecast on police pay offset by 

an overspend of £98k on overtime and £25k injury pensions (backdated payments on appeal). The underspend on 

police pay is due to a combination of   

 an increase in the number of officers who are not members of one of the police pension schemes (£120k) 

  an increase in the number of leavers (£99k)  

offset by  

 the introduction of transferees into the workforce plan (£113k)  

 other changes to the workforce plan (£7k).   

Description Revised Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Expenditure

/ (Income)

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

£'000s £'000s £'000s %

Constabulary Funding

Police Officers 86,046 86,070 24 0.03%

Police Community Support Officers 2,738 2,802 64 2.34%

Police Staff 22,494 22,371 (123) (0.55%)

Other Employee Budgets 1,566 1,571 5 0.32%

Transport Related Expenditure 2,322 2,310 (12) (0.52%)

Supplies & Services 10,545 10,660 115 1.09%

Third Party Related Expenses 2,192 2,216 24 1.09%

Total Constabulary Funding 127,903 128,000 97 0.08%

Income (6,645) (6,757) (112) 1.69%

Total Constabulary Funding Net of Income 121,258 121,243 (15) (0.01%)

23

Agenda Item 7a



                              
Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20
Forecast for Quarter 1 as at 30 June 2019 to The Police and Crime Panel 14 October 2019
 

 

The chart below illustrates the current HR WFP.  The green line represents the HR WFP used for budget setting 

purposes, the red line represents the current HR WFP at June 2019.  Based on numbers alone, where the red line is 

above the green line an overspend will result.  Where the green line is above the red line an underspend will result.  

Other factors including pay differentials between leavers and starters, maternity and paternity payments also impact 

on the under / overspend. In broad terms the graph indicates that officer numbers are expected to be in line with the 

workforce plan for most of the year. By the year end numbers will be slightly above the original workforce plan, 

principally due to the recruitment of transferees.   

 

 

The PCSO budget is forecast to overspend by £64k.  This is due to starting the year 1.8 FTE above the assumptions 

made during budget setting and remaining, on average, 2.26 FTE above the projected average.  

 

 

The police staff budget is forecast to underspend by £123k.  The underspend on police staff has arisen as a result of 

the assumptions made with regard to when vacant posts are expected to be filled.   

 

The other employee expenses budget is forecasted to overspend by £5k.  This is largely as a result of the assumptions 

made with regards to recruitment (£6k) and welfare (£6k) offset by a forecast underspend on training (£7k). 

 

The transport related budget is forecasting to underspend by £12k, the primary reason for this is in relation to a 

forecast underspend on travel expenses (£26k) offset by an increase in car hire (£2k) and vehicle repairs and 

maintenance (£10k).  

24



                              
Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20
Forecast for Quarter 1 as at 30 June 2019 to The Police and Crime Panel 14 October 2019
 

 

The supplies and services budget is showing a forecast overspend of £115k.  This is due to a combination of  increased 

costs of custody provision regarding Appropriate Adult Services (£20k), additional expenditure in respect of police 

pension scheme charges (£30k), a contribution to a shared chief superintendent role with Durham (£45k) and a 

forecast overspend on ICT of £379k including £75k additional cost of control room futures (additional dual running) 

and £260k of ICT savings yet to be identified.  Offsetting these forecast overspends are efficiency savings which have 

been removed from individual budget lines (£152k), a forecast underspend on the custody medical contract of £53k 

and the fact we have not yet committed all of the force contingency (£150k). 

 

The third party payments budget is forecast to overspend by £24k.  This includes additional spend on the pensions 

provider (£6k), an increase to National ICT charges of £6k and an additional contribution to the national enquiry on 

undercover policing of £9k. 

 

Income is currently forecast to exceed the budget by £112k.  The forecast includes assumptions regarding income in 

relation to income from other forces including mutual aid net income (£59k), income from secondments and other 

reimbursements of costs (£46k), refunds (£23k) and warrants officer income (£4k), offset by reduced net income from 

policing events (£16k). 

 

Potential Risk Areas 

The figures provided above are based on current information as at the end of June.  These forecasts include an 

assumption with regard to potential income in relation to special policing services and mutual aid.  Should this income 

not be realised to the degree expected the forecast underspend could reduce. 

The forecasts are based on inflation assumptions at the time the budget was set, which could be impacted by pay 

awards and external events such as Brexit. Subsequent financial forecasts will continue to be updated to reflect any 

changes to these assumptions. 

Since this budget report was prepared the financial position has been significantly impacted by the Constabulary’s 

response to the Government’s decision to recruit an additional 20,000 officers over the next 3 years. The funding 

position is still evolving, but will be reflected in future budget reports.  

  

 

 

Recommendation: The Police and Crime Panel are asked to note the forecast budget position and potential risk 

areas identified.  

  

25



This page is intentionally left blank



Commissioner’s Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 
Forecast as at 30 June 2019 to The Police and Crime Panel 14 October 2019 
 
Commissioner’s Budget Summary at June 2019 

The current forecast of net expenditure amounts to £103.797m compared to a revised budget of £103.742m.  The 

variance amounts to a forecast overspend of £55k (0.05%) and is made up of a forecast underspend of £15k (0.01%) 

in respect of Constabulary budget and a forecast overspend of £70k (0.40%) on budgets managed by the 

Commissioner. 

As noted in the Constabulary report, the financial position will be affected by the Government’s decision to recruit an 

additional 20,000 officers nationally, which was announced post production of this report. The costs of recruitment 

and funding position for the additional officers are still evolving and will be outlined in future financial reports to the 

Panel.  

 

 

 

OPCC Budgets 

The forecast underspend on the Commissioner’s own office budget arises principally as a result of underspends on 

staff in the office of the PCC (£21k).   

In respect of other budgets managed by the Commissioner, the forecast overspend arises as a result of an overspend 

on premises costs (£41k) concerning repair and maintenance and an adjustment to grant income received (£24k). 

There is also a forecast reduction to investment income of £35k, as planned changes to the investment strategy are 

deferred until the outcome of Brexit and any associated financial implications are more fully understood.  These extra 

Description Revised Forecast Forecast Forecast

Budget Expenditure 

/ (Income

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

£'000s £'000s £'000s %

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 758 737 (21) (2.77%)

Other PCC Budgets (13,741) (13,650) 91 (0.66%)

Movements To / (From) Reserves (4,533) (4,533) 0 0.00%

Total OPCC Budgets (17,516) (17,446) 70 (0.40%)

Funding Provided to the Constabulary 121,258 121,243 (15) (0.01%)

Net Expenditure 103,742 103,797 55 0.05%

External Funding (103,742) (103,742) 0 0.00%

Total 0 55 55

27

Agenda Item 7b



Commissioner’s Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 
Forecast as at 30 June 2019 to The Police and Crime Panel 14 October 2019 
 
costs are partially offset by reduced transport insurance as a result of a low claims rebate received in respect of the 

previous year (£10k). 

 

Constabulary Budgets 

The principal reasons for the forecast Constabulary underspend are underspends on police staff pay and allowances 

(£123k).  This has arisen as a result of changes to assumptions made with regard to when vacant posts are expected 

to be filled.  In addition, the Constabulary is forecasting to increase income by £112k.  This increase is predominately 

due to income from other forces including secondments and mutual aid. 

These underspends are offset by additional spend on police pay and PCSO pay due to changes to the respective 

workforce plans, additional spend on ICT costs, custody and contributions to national and regional partnerships and 

collaborations. 

 

Police Property Act 

At 30 June 2019 the balance on the Police Property Act fund was £71k.  In June 2019, awards totalling £20k were made 

from the fund.  Full details of the awards made are available on the PCC website at  https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-

we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/ 

 

28

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/


Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner Report

Support for Victims 

Date: 26th September 2019
Originating Officer: Partnerships and Strategy Manager

Executive Summary

This report summaries the Commissioner’s work in relation to support for victims of crime and 
abuse. It covers commissioning of victim services, seeking the views of people affected by crime 
and holding to account of the Constabulary on how they deal with victims. 

Recommendation

That the Panel notes the Commissioner’s work to put victims first.

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 The Police and Crime Plan is key in setting out the Commissioner’s objectives.  Delivery of 
the Plan is in partnership with statutory and third sector partners, with an underlining 
principle of ‘We Not They’, recognising that it is the responsibility of all to make ‘Cumbria 
even safer’.  The Commissioner has in place an accountability and governance framework 
that enables him to gain assurance that his statutory duty is being delivered.  

1.2 Putting victims first and making a positive difference to their lives is at the heart of the 
Commissioner’s role.  The Commissioner has a responsibility for commissioning local 
services to help victims of crime, ensuring they are supported throughout the criminal 
justice process and have access to the support services that they need to help them cope 
and recover.  The Commissioner does this by listening to the voice of his communities and 
by working in close partnership with other stakeholders such as local authorities, health 
services and specialist third sector and private organisations.  The Commissioner also has 
responsibility for monitoring how criminal justice agencies meet the needs of victims, 
ensuring that victims receive their entitlements under the Victims’ Code of Practice.  This 
report provides examples of how the Commissioner, and his office, are helping to make a 
real difference in putting victims first and working at a local level to ensure victims are 
supported.   

29

Agenda Item 8



1.3 The Police & Crime Panel seek assurance that the Commissioner is:

(a) Listening to the concerns of victims and putting in place robust monitoring 
arrangements to ensure that victims are always put first, and

(b) Demonstrating impact and scale in commissioning victim support services, to ensure 
that all victims of crime are supported, regardless of crime, through the whole county. 

2. The Commissioner listens to the concerns of victims and puts in place robust monitoring 
arrangements to ensure that victims are always put first. 

2.1 In 2017, the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner led the way by bringing criminal 
justice agencies together to develop a Quality Assessment Framework that would ensure 
victims and witnesses receive the services and support they need from the criminal justice 
system.  At the heart of this framework is improving compliance against The Victims’ Code of 
Practice, which stipulates the statutory entitlements victims should receive from each 
criminal justice agency.  The Safer Cumbria Victims & Witnesses Group has overall 
responsibility for overseeing the implementation of this framework, which includes carrying 
out an annual dip-sample of cases progressed through the criminal justice system, to identify 
were improvements need to be made.  The Quality Assessment Framework forms part of the 
Commissioner’s wider framework in holding the Constabulary to account and provides 
assurance that the needs of victims are always put first.

2.2 The Quality Assessment Framework found that some victims were not being offered the 
chance to make a Victim Personal Statement (VPS).  VPS provide an opportunity for victims to 
be heard in the criminal justice process.  It is recognised nationally that the uptake of this 
provision is low.  A Task and Finish Group was developed to review and address the issues 
identified.  The key actions undertaken to improve compliance were as follows: specific 
information regarding VPS was produced by the Witness Care Unit (WCU) and is now 
disseminated to all victims notified to attend court.  Further information has been included in 
the Constabulary’s revised Victims’ Booklet, given to all victims of crime.  The Constabulary is 
currently developing a Victims’ Booklet for those who have experienced antisocial behaviour 
and will include important information regarding VPS.  Work is on-going with the 
Constabulary’s ‘Red Sigma’ project team to ensure there is a mandatory action in the new 
Red Sigma Crime Management System, to prompt officers to ask victims if they would like to 
give a VPS, where relevant.  The Victims’ Advocate in the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (OPCC) attends all initial police officer training, raising awareness of the 
importance of a VPS and the impact they can have.  The task and finish group also developed 
a VPS briefing document that has been circulated amongst criminal justice agencies, drawing 
upon national guidance published in December 2018 - “Joint Agency Guide to the Victim 
Personal Statement – A Guide for all Criminal Justice Practitioners”.  The uptake of VPS will 
continue to be monitored through the Quality Assessment Framework to ensure the work 
undertaken has improved the issue.

30



2.3 At the last Victims & Witnesses Group meeting, it was identified that the process for enabling 
the victim to read their statement in court could be improved.  Steps are been taken to 
ensure that a victim’s request to personally read out their own statement in court is recorded 
and shared across all relevant agencies.  In order for a victim to read their own statement, an 
application has to be submitted to the court and approved by the judiciary.  Through the 
Victims & Witnesses Group, the partner agencies are clarifying this process within their 
respective organisations.

2.4 Out of court disposals allow the police to deal quickly and proportionately with low level, 
often first time, offending which can be appropriately resolved without a prosecution at 
court.  They can provide swift and meaningful justice for victims, hold offenders to account 
for their actions and reduce re-offending.  The Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny Panel supports 
the Commissioner to gain assurance in how the Constabulary use out of court disposals (such 
as a caution) and forms part of his wider accountability framework.  It provides constructive 
stakeholder scrutiny at an organisational and individual level to promote best practice, 
identify development needs and more effective working practices between agencies.  It also 
works to ensure the voice of victims is heard through the out of court disposal process and 
provide challenge where it appears not to have been considered.  The Panel is made up of 
representatives from across the criminal justice system and victim support services, and is 
chaired by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner.  Every quarter, the Panel 
independently reviews a random selection of anonymised cases that have been resolved by 
use of an out of court disposal and determine whether the method of disposal is considered 
appropriate.  It considers the offence category and severity of offence, the evidence present 
at the time of disposal, the rationale in the police officer’s decision making, and whether the 
decisions were victim focused.  The Panel has no referral or appeals capability and is not 
intended to re-judge cases.  

2.5 In 2018, the Panel considered 92 out of court disposal cases.  Overall, the Panel agreed that 
73% of cases were found to have a disposal appropriate to the severity of offending and type 
of offence.  In 25% of cases, members raised concerns with how the outcome was recorded 
which led to either a request for further clarity, or disagreement of the decision made to use 
an out of court disposal.  In 2% of cases, the Panel failed to reach an agreement.  In all cases 
where issues were raised, guidance and advice has been feedback to the officer and decision 
maker.  A positive outcome from this is that the inappropriate and inconsistent disposals 
associated with domestic abuse cases have almost been eliminated following Panel feedback 
and changes have been made to policy.

2.6 Further findings indicate that officers are showing a high degree of professionalism when 
investigating crimes and taking into account the views of the victim when deciding to 
exercise an out of court disposal.  Specific vulnerable groups such as Looked After Children 
and people with mental health issues featured in a number of the cases.  It was clear that 
officers had considered the most appropriate and effective outcome when reaching a 
decision.  The Panel also found that there was a high level of decision making rationale in 
cases involving young people. 

31



2.7 In April 2019, the former Victim’s Commissioner, Baroness Newlove, published a national 
report (‘Antisocial Behaviour: Living a Nightmare’) which raised concerns regarding the use, 
and awareness, of the Community Trigger Process introduced by the Government in 2012.  
The Community Trigger (also known as an Antisocial Behaviour (ASB) Case Review) enables 
victims to hold their local agencies to account.  They must meet a threshold (usually three 
reports of separate incidents within a six-month period) before they can activate a 
Community Trigger through their local lead agency.  A multi-agency case review is arranged 
to discuss the case and seek to resolve the antisocial behaviour.  The Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner has tasked the Constabulary to review the arrangements in place across 
Cumbria, linking in with relevant agencies to ensure there is a standardised and transparent 
process, and that everybody is aware of their statutory responsibilities.

2.8 When members of the public raise local concerns or issues directly with the Commissioner, 
these are recorded as ‘Quality of Service or Policing Issues’ (QSPIs).  For 2019, 347 QSPIs have 
been recorded to date, including issues such as antisocial behaviour and driving, general 
policing and resources.  The Commissioner informs the Constabulary of all QSPIs that have 
received consent for their personal data to be shared.  Dependent upon the issues raised, 
officers or Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) from local policing teams will contact 
the individual with a view to seeking a resolution to the matter or may refer them to other 
more appropriate agencies to provide support.  The Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner provides a written response to all QSPIs explaining the actions that have been 
taken to address the issues raised.  

2.9 The Commissioner’s Victims’ Advocate continues to champion the cause for victims, and 
importantly, help drive up standards. She facilitates a Victims’ and Witnesses’ Consultation 
Group whose members provide feedback on their experience of accessing services following 
a crime or antisocial behavior and also act as a sounding board for new policies and 
initiatives. The Group helps to dip sample Out of Court Disposal cases, providing the voice of 
a victim in that scrutiny process, to support police learning. The Victims’ Advocate also 
speaks directly to victims, for example where they have approached the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner, to understand what worked well and did not in their journey to 
access support or in dealing with criminal justice agencies. This information then informs the 
OPCC’s work with the Constabulary, commissioned providers and partners (such as through 
the Victims and Witnesses Group) to ensure victims are put first. In addition, dip sampling of 
cases in commissioned services by the Victims’ Advocate now forms an important part of the 
quality assurance for the OPCC, as detailed below. This results in quality work being 
recognised, specific actions for improvement being picked up in an action plan and contract 
management processes for each service being focused on pertinent issues. 

3. The Commissioner has demonstrated impact and scale in commissioning victim support 
services, to ensure that all victims of crime are supported, regardless of crime, through the 
whole county. 

3.1 During 2018-19, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner worked with partner 
agencies, in particular Cumbria County Council, to commission a new integrated support 
service for victims of crime and abuse. The service, which is provided by Victim Support 
Cumbria, has been developed in response to feedback from victims about what would 

32



improve their journey to getting support after a crime. The aim is to enable the victim to 
access the right service from the right person as soon as possible, without repeatedly having 
to explain their situation before accessing the right help. It brings together a number of 
previous services and contracts for domestic abuse, sexual abuse and other types of crime to 
provide a gateway to the right help for victims. The Victim Support team includes specially 
trained Independent Victims’ Advocates who provide practical, emotional and advocacy 
support for victims of all types of crime and antisocial behaviour, alongside specialist 
Independent Domestic and Sexual Violence Advisors. The service is structured so that a 
victim is contacted by the right type of worker from the outset, where sufficient information 
on their case is available, to avoid them having to speak to multiple people before getting 
more in-depth support. It is also developing further its referral pathways with other services 
to ensure as smooth a journey for the victim as possible, including avoiding them having to 
repeat their story if they consent for this information to be shared. As well as the direct 
benefits in terms of a victims’ journey, this integration of teams and contracts also allows for 
greater resilience during periods of staff absence and vacancy, which is a continued challenge 
in our county where recruitment of specialist staff has always been difficult. 

3.2 The service is available across the county for children, young people and all adults, whether 
or not they have reported to the police and for any type of crime. Victims can refer 
themselves to the service or be referred by the police or other agencies. It includes help to 
understand the criminal justice system and support with reporting a crime for those who are 
nervous about doing so. The new service includes out of office hours support through the 
national 24/7 Support Line and a new Live Chat facility provided by local staff via the Victim 
Support website, for those who do not want to contact the service via telephone. The uptake 
of the Live Chat service has been positive, with 99 Live Chats (77 new visitors and 22 
returning) taking place during the period May 2019 to mid-August 2019, and has led to some 
vulnerable victims in complex abusive situations going on to seek further support.

3.3 In terms of commissioning the service, the OPCC worked closely with partners through Safer 
Cumbria and all decisions about the specification and procurement route were taken in 
partnership through the Commissioning Group.  As a joint funder, Cumbria County Council 
was heavily involved with this, including in the evaluation of bids. The chosen route was to 
use a Competitive Procedure with Negotiation under the Light Touch Regime, which 
essentially meant that initial expressions of interest from bidders were invited against a draft 
specification for the service (advertised EU-wide) and then the exact remit and format of the 
service was developed through negotiation with the bidders. This enabled an affordable and 
feasible service to be developed and both the provider and commissioners felt that it had led 
to a better outcome than traditional procurement routes. Now that the contract is live, 
quarterly contract management meetings are held, focusing on the delivery of the key 
aspects of the contract and these are attended by representatives of the OPCC and County 
Council. In addition, themed quarterly dip sampling of cases is conducted with Victim Support 
by the OPCC Victims’ Advocate and, where relevant, the Domestic and Sexual Abuse 
Coordinator at Cumbria County Council. This provides additional assurance in relation to the 
quality of the service being provided. 

33



3.4 Key performance indicators for this service are measures of the impact (‘outcomes’), focused 
on four key areas, in line with Ministry of Justice outcomes measures. In the first quarter of 
2019-20, all of these indicators showed positive results: 80% of service users who had 
completed the service and responded reported an improvement in their health and well-
being, 85% reported an improvement in their ability to cope with aspects of everyday life, 
70% felt there had been an improvement in their feelings of safety and 75% felt more 
informed and empowered to act.  In addition, all service users who responded were satisfied 
with the service they had received.  The most recent dip sample of Victim Support’s victim 
service in June 2019 was positive overall, finding that service users were being contacted in a 
timely manner and provided with the appropriate advice and support for their needs. There 
was good evidence of discussion with the victim about the impact of the crime on their well-
being, home and social life and support network, to enable targeting of support to their 
individual needs and any impact of the service to be measured. Proactive attempts were 
being made to contact harder-to-reach individuals to offer support.

Case study:
A male victim of childhood sexual abuse by a relative, called Ryan for the purposes of this 
case study, was feeling very low and sometimes suicidal at the point he was referred to 
Victim Support. He had reported his case to the police and was contacted by Victim Support 
to offer help. Seeing the offender near his home was stirring up emotions for Ryan which 
gave him some ‘dark days’. A specially trained volunteer worked with him to develop coping 
strategies for when he felt low and to decide on a safety plan to avoid seeing the offender. 
The volunteer also helped him to understand and prepare for different stages of the criminal 
justice process, including being present when difficult news was delivered by the police and 
giving support with dealing with how he felt after the court case. After 18 months of support, 
Ryan’s case was closed. He reported a significant improvement in his well-being and in 
managing aspects of daily life (going from scoring himself at a low ‘1’ in the first assessment 
to the highest ‘10’ on the outcomes scale at the end assessment). He also reported positively 
on how integrated he felt (with family, friends and work), how safe and how positive his 
experience of the criminal justice system was.

3.5 Another service funded by the Police and Crime Commissioner is Remedi, who offer a 
restorative justice service for victims of crime in Cumbria. Restorative justice involves giving 
victims the opportunity to engage with the offender(s) to have any remaining questions they 
have answered and to explain the impact of the crime on them to the offender. This can help 
the victim to achieve closure and feel safer in the knowledge, for example, that they were 
not specifically targeted. Offenders often do not think about the impact of what they are 
doing on the victim so restorative justice can provide a driver to stopping and thinking before 
committing further crime. Provided the offender has admitted their guilt, it is offered in cases 
where a reported crime has been resolved with an out-of-court disposal and also post-
sentence for offenders who go through the courts. During 2018-19, 24 victims and offender 
conferences took place, which often involved multiple victims, and 61 indirect interventions 
were delivered. This is much higher than is reported in many other areas. Since the 
commissioning of this service, there has been a marked increase in restorative justice taking 
place, which is felt to be as a result of having a dedicated, consistent service for the county 
which works proactively with a number of referral agencies to encourage the offer of 
restorative justice to be made. The service seeks feedback from participants about the 

34



impact of the intervention, taking account of what they wanted it to achieve, as this is highly 
personal. 100% of people who responded who were concerned about their safety before 
being involved in restorative justice reported that they felt it had improved by the end of the 
intervention and 85% who were fearful felt that this has reduced.  95% expressed satisfaction 
with the overall service and 100% who felt their well-being had been impacted by the crime 
felt that it had improved following involvement with restorative justice. 

Case study: 
Karen was driving with her daughter and grandson in the back of the car. The car was hit in 
the rear by the offender who had been drinking and had taken a car to go out and get more 
drink and drugs. Karen has said that initially, she felt angry and had lots of questions about 
why it happened to her and her family. The offender was arrested and received a suspended 
prison sentence. As he had admitted his guilt and Karen felt restorative justice would help to 
answer some of her questions, they met face-to-face in a restorative conference following 
lots of preparation with Remedi. The offender explained what had happened, how he had 
changed since then and apologised for his actions.  Karen reported that the process was 
emotional but it had been a ‘win-win’ process for both of them. She found that the person 
who committed the offence was not the “nasty, evil” person she has been imagining, he had 
not targeted her family and after talking to him, she felt he had made a mistake. The result 
was that she was better able to move on from the incident: “I felt that it gave me closure.” 
For the offender, the realisation of the impact on her family and that he may have killed 
someone, particularly a child, had made him reflect on this life and change his behaviour. 

3.6 Another area where the Commissioner’s collaborative approach to commissioning services 
has supported the provision of a consistent, countywide service is The Bridgeway Sexual 
Assault Support Service. This includes the 24/7 helpline and a ‘gateway’ to appropriate 
support for sexual assault/abuse victims, much of which is provided by the 3 Bridgeway 
services themselves. These are the Sexual Assault Referral Centre, which provides forensic-
medical examinations and crisis support; the Independent Sexual Violence Advisor service 
outlined above and a specialist therapeutic service. The setting up of The Bridgeway in 2015 
ensured that there was an on-going commitment by key partners to sexual violence services 
and overcame inconsistencies and gaps in services. On-going contract management and close 
working with the 4 Bridgeway providers1 has led to greater partnership working and clearer, 
smoother referral pathways, helping to make best use of support resources and ensuring 
staff work together across agencies, rather than hold onto cases. 

3.7 The number of referrals, including self-referrals, to The Bridgeway in 2018-19 was 279, with 
153 being cases for which an examination was appropriate and offered (other referrals 
included, for example, historic cases where the person required emotional support). Service 
users and family members regularly provide feedback on their experience of attending the 
Bridgeway Sexual Assault Referral Centre in Penrith and this is overwhelmingly positive. As 
one recent service user said: “A horrible ordeal made more comfortable by staff.  Supportive, 
caring and friendly. A much needed service and could not be more grateful.” 

1 G4S Forensic-Medical Service, Safety Net UK, The Birchall Trust, Victim Support

35



3.8 An examination, documentation of injuries and collection of forensic evidence at The 
Bridgeway is part of the investigation strategy of the police and experience shows that 
without it, it can be very difficult to secure a conviction. In Cumbria, it is rare that doctors or 
nurses who have completed the examination are called as witnesses at court; this is mainly 
carried out through a written statement, which suggests that the forensic evidence has not 
been questioned. As one survivor who recently engaged with the OPCC explained, for her the 
evidence taken at the SARC was the one piece of evidence which she felt would support what 
she was saying and she was glad that she had had it collected. 

3.9 In addition to the above support, Brathay Trust were funded over 2 years (October 2015 to 
September 2017) by the Police and Crime Commissioner to develop and deliver a 
programme, known as Be Savy, aimed at reducing the number of young people being sexually 
exploited and/or at risk of being sexually exploited. In the first phase, a total of 27 young 
women aged 12-17 engaged in the programme: 82% reported they were more able to 
recognise a healthy relationship, whilst 88% felt they had a greater ability to sort out the 
problems they might face. The project was developed through discussion with local agencies, 
in addition a consultation exercise was conducted in Barrow consisting of an online survey. 
Following on from this pilot, the Commissioner is now part-funding a 3-year programme, 
alongside funding from Brathay, from 1st October 2018 to 30th September 2021. Like other 
OPCC contracts, regular contract management meetings take place, with focus on take-up 
and impact of the scheme, and the provider is required to produce an evaluation which 
incorporates participants’ views on the outcomes of the scheme. Programmes are currently 
underway so evaluation information will be available once they are completed. Feedback so 
far is positive; for example, one participant said: “I have learned how to stay safe on social 
media and to say no if I need to. I have learned what a healthy relationship is and how to get 
help and who from.” Another said she had learned to “think before doing an action to my 
life, but to also go to someone if needed.” These are simple but vital steps for young women 
who have been identified as vulnerable to exploitation. 

3.10 This report focusses on the work of the Police and Crime Commissioner to commission 
services which put victims first and which support them to cope and recover after crime or 
abuse. The approach taken is very much a partnership one: to drive consistency, avoid gaps 
and duplication and draw the benefits of the scale of countywide services.  The key services 
outlined here are demonstrating that they are having a positive impact for victims. In 
addition, processes which the OPCC has in place are ensuring victims’ views feed into robust 
systems for ensuring quality of provision and that victims are put first across the criminal 
justice system. 

36



CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Meeting date: 14 October 2019

From:  Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County Council)

UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report advises members of any complaints received in 
accordance with the Panel’s complaints procedure.  The 
report outlines where appropriate, what, if any, action has 
been taken in respect of the complaints.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 Members are asked to note the report.

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 At the meeting on 15 October 2018 the Panel agreed to adopt a 
revised complaints procedure to consider non-criminal complaints 
in relation to the Police and Crime Commissioner or other office 
holders.

3.2 The Procedure 
3.2.1 As part of the revised procedure, the Monitoring Officer of 

Cumbria County Council will consider all complaints matters in 
the initial stages.  If the Monitoring Officer cannot broker a 
resolution, a sub-committee of the Panel should be convened to 
consider the matter further.

37

Agenda Item 9



3.2.2 The Panel will receive a report to each meeting detailing the 
position with all ongoing complaints, and requesting a sub-
committee be convened if appropriate.  

4.0 DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED

4.1 As at the date of this report, there are no ongoing complaints.

Iolanda Puzio
Monitoring Officer, Cumbria County Council

September 2019

APPENDICES

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

No background papers 

Contact: Ben Spencer
E-mail: ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk
Telephone: 07919 297914

38

mailto:ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk


CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Meeting date: 14 October 2019

From: Senior Manager – Policy and Scrutiny

PANEL UPDATE REPORT

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report updates the Police and Crime Panel on:

 Key issues and developments that have occurred since the 
last meeting on the 12th July 2019 including

o Progress on actions agreed at the March Panel meeting
o National policy developments.

2.0 ISSUES FOR THE PANEL

2.1 Note the range of activity set out in the report and highlight, if required, 
issues that they would like more information on.

2.2 Note where more information may be required and/or more formal 
reporting from the Commissioner’s office at a future Panel meeting.

3.0 BACKGROUND

Progress on actions agreed at the July Panel Meeting:
3.1 The substantive item for consideration at the last meeting of the Police 

and Crime Panel meeting on 12th July was Serious Violence and County 
Lines.

3.2 Specific actions arising from the July meeting were:

 For the Commissioner’s Office to share details of the role of the 
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Co-ordinator. This 
information has been circulated to Panel.

3.3 Other outstanding actions:

 Update from the Commissioner’s Office on the Barrow Police Station 
solar panels projects.  Information has been circulated to Panel.

 Feedback from the IOPC following their attendance at the March 
meeting.  This information has been circulated to Panel.

39

Agenda Item 10



 Further information to be provided to Panel on Out of Court Disposal 
Scrutiny Panel.  This information has been circulated to Panel.

4.0 HORIZON SCANNING

This section of the report provides members with an overview of 
forthcoming key issues with implications for policing and 
community safety.

RECOMMENDATION

4.1 The Panel is asked to consider the content of this section of the report, 
and highlight any issues that they would like more information on. 
Scanning for significant national and local policy developments helps to 
inform and formulate the Panel’s future work programme content.

4.2 Outlined below are key issues of particular importance to the Police and 
Crime Panel:

 Government’s Policing Announcements
 Domestic Abuse Update
 Independent Review of Prevent Programme
 Modern Slavery Update.

GOVERNMENT’S POLICING ANNOUNCEMENTS

4.3 In the Spending Round 2019, the Government announced £750m, for 
2020/21, to recruit 20,000 new police officers over the next three years. 
There will be an additional £45m provided so recruitment can begin 
immediately, with 6,000 new officers in place by the end of March 2021. 

4.4 The Government has announced that it will allocate £10m to police 
forces, on arming more officers with electric stun guns. The Home Office 
has cited that this would lead to 10,000 police officers having stun guns, 
roughly 10% of total police officers, although this figure has been 
disputed by the National Police Chiefs Council.

4.5 In August 2019, the Government also announced that up to £2.5bn will 
be spent on creating modern, efficient prisons, which will include the 
creation of 10,000 additional prison places.

4.6 Along with these commitments, the Government also has lifted the 
restriction on all 43 Police Forces using Section 60 of the Criminal Justice 
and Public Order Act.  This will lead to more officers being able to use 
stop and search anyone in a designated area without needing reasonable 
grounds for suspicion if serious violence is anticipated.

4.7 In October, the Home Secretary announced at the Conservative Party 
Conference a series of measures to tackle county lines.  This included the 
following:

40



 Additional investment into the National County Lines Co-ordination 
Centre to increase its activity;

 Specific British Transport Police teams that work exclusively on 
county lines, and will be based at a number of railway stations across 
England that are key hubs for county lines;

 Investment in data analysis and automatic number plate recognition 
to enable police to proactively target vehicles suspected of being 
used in county lines activity;

 Working with money service bureaus to tackle illicit finance;

 Develop an expanded national specialist support service to help 
young people and their families exit their involvement in county lines

4.8 From April 2020, Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) will be able to 
bid for the new Safer Streets Fund, for measures aimed at preventing 
acquisitive crime in disproportionately affected areas. Each crime 
prevention plan could target vehicle theft, robbery or burglary for 
instance.

DOMESTIC ABUSE UPDATE

4.9 In July, the National Rural Crime Network found that domestic abuse 
victims in rural areas suffer for longer, are less likely to report abuse and 
struggle to receive support. The support found that rural victims were 
half as likely to report their abuse to others, and experienced abuse for 
25% longer.

4.10 The report cited evidence that abusers move victims to rural settings to 
further isolate them, or systemically use isolation as a technique.

4.11 In September, the Government appointed the UK’s first Domestic Abuse 
Commissioner. The role will lead on driving improvements on the 
response to domestic abuse in the UK, championing victims and 
recommending on what more should be done to better protect victims 
and bring more offenders to justice.

4.12 The Domestic Abuse Bill received its second reading in the House of 
Parliament on Friday 2 October.

INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF PREVENT PROGRAMME

4.13 In August, the Government announced that Lord Carlile will oversee the 
independent review of the Prevent programme, which safeguards 
vulnerable people from being drawn into terrorism.

4.14 The review will focus on the current delivery of the Prevent programme, 
and make recommendations for the future. It is expected to report to 
Parliament by August 2020. 

41



MODERN SLAVERY UPDATE

4.15 A new system has been rolled out to simplify and speed up referrals of 
potential victims of modern slavery for government support.

4.16 The fully digitised system will simplify the process that first responders – 
including police officers, social workers or immigration officers – follow 
when referring victims of modern slavery to the National Referral 
Mechanism (NRM). Until now, first responders have used paper forms to 
refer victims for support.

5.0 FORTHCOMING MEETINGS AND DATES

5.1 Dates and information are provided below for meetings that may be of 
interest to Panel Members. For Members interested in attending either of 
the two conferences below, travel and further background and 
supporting papers will be arranged ahead of the event.

5.2 Public Accountability Conference meetings are as follows (the meetings 
are generally held at Carleton Hall, Penrith at 10.00am unless otherwise 
stated). The next meetings are:

 7 November
 11 December
 19 February 2020 (Budget Setting Meeting)
 4 March 2020

5.3 Joint Audit Committee

 20 November
 18 March 2020.

COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP MEETINGS

5.4 North Cumbria Community Safety Partnership

 Tuesday 3 December, 2pm, Carlisle East Community Fire Station, 
Carlisle

South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership

Dates to be shared with Panel when available

West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership

Dates to be shared with Panel when available.

42



6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The Police and Crime Panel are invited to consider issues that have been 
highlighted in this report, and whether they would like more detailed 
reporting from the PCC in future on any of these topics, or any other 
topics they consider pertinent. 

6.2 Work Programme – officers will work with Panel Members to bring 
forward topics for consideration at future Panel meetings based on 
national and local policy scanning including the contents of this and 
future Panel Briefings.

Tim Gale, Senior Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer, CCC
Hani Cox, Policy and Scrutiny Officer, CCC

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Contact: Tim Gale, telephone: 07810 530146 or 
e-mail tim.gale@cumbria.gov.uk

43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Joint Audit Committee Annual Report 2018/19
	7a Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20
	7b Commissioner's Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20
	8 Support For Victims
	9 Update on Complaints
	10 Panel Update Report

